
 
 

Agenda 
 

Western Area Committee Meeting 
 
Date: Thursday, 5 September 2024 
Time 7.00 pm, 
Venue: Bredgar Village Hall, Bexon Lane, Bredgar ME9 8HB* 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Mike Baldock, Monique Bonney, Ann Cavanagh, Lloyd Chapman, Roger Clark,  
James Hunt, Chris Palmer (Vice-Chair), Richard Palmer, Paul Stephen (Chair) and  
Sarah Stephen. 
 
Quorum = 3 

 
  Pages 

Information about this meeting 
*Members of the press and public can listen to this meeting live. Details of how 
to join the meeting will be added to the website 4 September 2024. 
 
Recording and Privacy Notice  
 
Swale Borough Council is committed to protecting the security of your personal 
information. As data controller we process data in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018 and the UK General Data Protection Regulation. 
 
This meeting may be recorded. The recording will be retained in accordance 
with the Council’s data retention policy and may be published on the Council’s 
website. By entering the chamber and by speaking at a meeting, whether in 
person or online, you are consenting to being recorded and to the recording 
being published. 
 
When joining a meeting online, your username will be visible to others in 
attendance. In joining the meeting you are consenting to us processing your 
username. You may use a pseudonym as your username but the use of an 
inappropriate name may lead to removal from the meeting. 
 
If you have any questions about how we look after your personal information or 
your rights under the legislation, please email 
dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk.  
 

 

1.   Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
Visitors and members of the public who are unfamiliar with the building 

and procedures are advised that:  

 

a) There is no scheduled test of the fire alarm during this meeting. If 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk


 

the alarm does sound, please leave the building quickly without 

collecting any of your possessions, using the doors signed as fire 

escapes. 

b) Assemble outside where directed. Await instructions before re-

entering the building. 

c) Anyone who requires assistance in evacuating the building, 

should make themselves known during this agenda item. 

 
2.   Apologies for Absence 

 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 

other material benefits for themselves, their families or friends.  

 

The Chair will ask Members if they have any disclosable pecuniary 

interests (DPIs) or disclosable non-pecuniary interests (DNPIs) to 

declare in respect of items on the agenda. Members with a DPI in an 

item must leave the room for that item and may not participate in the 

debate or vote.   

 

Aside from disclosable interests, where a fair-minded and informed 

observer would think there was a real possibility that a Member might be 

biased or predetermined on an item, the Member should declare this 

and leave the room while that item is considered.  

 

Members who are in any doubt about interests, bias or predetermination 

should contact the monitoring officer for advice prior to the meeting. 

 

 

4.   Minutes 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 February 2024 (Minute 
Nos. 636 – 646) and the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 May 2024 
(Minute Nos. 39 - 40) as correct records.  
 

 

5.   Kent Local Transport Plan 5 
 

 

6.   Scrutiny of Waste Contract 
 

 

7.   Public Forum 
 

 

8.   Enhanced Partnership - Swale Local Bus Focus Group 
 

 

9.   Swale Traffic Forum 
 

 

10.   Matters arising from previous meetings 
 

5 - 8 

11.   Local issues to be raised 
 

 

12.   Matters referred to Service Committee Chairs for consideration  

https://ws.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/g4000/Printed%20minutes%20Thursday%2015-Feb-2024%2019.00%20Western%20Area%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://ws.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/g4205/Printed%20minutes%20Wednesday%2015-May-2024%2019.30%20Western%20Area%20Committee.pdf?T=1


 

 

 

Issued on Wednesday, 28 August 2024 
 

The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available 
in alternative formats. For further information about this service, or to 
arrange for special facilities to be provided at the meeting, please 
contact democraticservices@swale.gov.uk. To find out more about 
the work of committees, please visit www.swale.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council, 
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT 

democraticservices@swale.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Western Area Committee meeting: Progress on Matters Arising – September 2024 

No. Item Background Progress on actions 

1. Land assets in the 
Western area. 

It was requested at the Area Committee meeting 
on 8 June 2023 that a list of land in the Western 
Area be obtained so that Members could 
consider transferring land assets to Parish 
Councils.  
 
The land asset maps were presented at the 
February 2024 meeting. 
 
A Member spoke about the unregistered land in 
Bapchild which had a long history of being used 
as a tip. She said there were potential 
underground toxic gases which needed to be 
properly vented. Bapchild Parish Council had no 
interest in taking on the land and it was the 
responsibility of SBC to maintain the land. The 
Strategic Programme & Assets Manager said he 
would take the matter away to get further 
advice. 
 
 

The Strategic Programme & Assets Manager 
advised the mapping layer showing the 
Council’s land ownership in the Borough is 
now published on the Councils website as 
part of a consultation on the Council’s 
disposal and Community Asset Transfer 
policies.   
 
Enquiries made in respect of the land at 
Bapchild have indicated that the land was 
previously a small chalk hole that received 
some domestic refuse and other builders’ 
waste.  A “spike bar” landfill gas survey was 
carried out in 1992.  No methane was being 
generated, but slightly raised levels of carbon 
dioxide were noted (this is common in 
agricultural soils).  The assessment was that 
the most probable explanations for these 
levels are that either the waste material on 
the site is reaching the end of the decaying 
process, or that carbon dioxide is being 
generated by the action of acidic rain water 
on chalk sub strata.  The latter explanation 
was considered the more probable. 
 
The land is currently unregistered but is 
maintained by Swale Borough Council. 

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 10



 

2. Bredgar and Hartlip 
Conservation Area 
Reviews. 

The Conservation & Design Team advised that 
the Planning and Resources Committee agreed 
to re-designate and adopt Bredgar and Hartlip 
Conservation  Areas at their meeting on 18 
October 2023.  
 
A new Conservation Area for Bexon is being 
programmed to be undertaken during summer 
of 2024. 

The Conservation & Design Team advised 
updated documents for both Bredgar and 
Hartlip Conservation Areas have now been 
published on the Swale Borough Council 
website.  
 
Consultant's brief for preparing Conservation 
Area Review for Bexon is being prepared, 
and will be sent out for tender by September 
2024.   

4. Heritage issues Local Heritage List - A selection panel date is 
to be confirmed to finalise the received 
nominations to be registered on Swale Borough 
Council (SBC) Local Heritage List register. 
 
The next steps will be to organise map plots of 
all the finalised assets on the SBC GIS system 
and publish a detailed schedule of the final 
Local Heritage List on the SBC website. 

The Conservation & Design Team advised 
the officer is looking at organising the 

selection panel for the Local Heritage List in 
September/October 2024, dates will be 
confirmed by 16th September 2024.   

5. Littering and fly-
tipping 

A Member raised the following issues: 

• The large amount of rubbish at the sides of 
roads. What can be done to get it cleared?; 
and 

• SBC needed to be more proactive about fly-
tipping in the Borough. 

A verbal response will be given at the 
meeting. 
 

6. Parking A Member raised the following issues: 

• motorists parking on double yellow lines was 
an increasing problem in Newington and 
there did not seem to be any enforcement; 
and 

• there were anti-social behaviour issues 
connected with parking. 

The Chair of the Community & Leisure 
Committee will provide a verbal update at the 
meeting. 
 
 

P
age 6



 

7. Planning Service 
phone calls 

A question was asked about the Planning 
Service trial period reducing times to receive 
phone calls. The Chief Executive responded 
that the trial had been successful as planning 
issues being dealt with more quickly. The 
Planning Improvement Board were happy for 
the arrangement to continue. The Chief 
Executive would, however, raise the concerns 
about call times at the next Planning 
Improvement Board meeting. 

The Chief Executive has advised that the 
changed times to receive phone calls would 
continue indefinitely. 

8. Planning Portal A parish councillor said that he had experienced 
problems with accessing the online Planning 
Portal, it was agreed to take this issue back to 
officers to investigate. 

A problem with public access was reported in 
February 2024 which was subsequently 
resolved. If further problems are experienced, 
please report them. 

9. Housing Support 
Fund 

A Parish Councillor suggested that cavity wall 
insulation could be added to the list of critical 
services delivered to the most vulnerable. A 
Member responded that there was already a 
Government scheme in place to provide this 
service but signposting to the scheme could be 
provided.  

The Policy & Engagement Officer has fed this 
back to the lead officer. 
 
 

10. Swale Traffic Forum Members asked if the representative had to be a 
Borough Councillor or if it could be a parish 
councillor instead. The Chief Executive agreed 
to seek advice and feedback to the Area 
Committee after the meeting so that a 
representative could be nominated at the next 
meeting. 

The Swale Traffic Forum Terms of Reference 
stipulate is has to be a County or Borough 
Councillor representing the Area Committees.  

 

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	10 Matters arising from previous meetings

